
 
 

MINUTES OF THE CITY OF PORT WASHINGTON 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

August 17, 2015 
City Hall 

 
Present: Mary Becker, Erica Roller, Mike Ehrlich, Rory Palubiski, Missy Larson, Tom Mlada and 
Bill Prince (by phone).  Also Present: Jason Wittek and Randy Tetzlaff, Director of Planning & 
Development.   
 
Roll call: The meeting was called to order by Ehrlich at 6:02 pm and noted that a quorum 
present.  He also acknowledged the large number of folks in the audience (estimated to exceed 
40). 
 
Minutes of the May meeting:  A motion was made by Becker to approve the minutes of the 
July meeting.  All voting aye, the motion was approved. 
 
Discussion by representatives of the 1000 Friends of Wisconsin:  Mlada noted that a walk audit 
was previously conducted by the ACES Committee in and around the high school.  Earlier 
today, representatives of the 1000 Friends of Wisconsin joined committee members on a walk 
audit of downtown Port. 
 
Overview on the effort to redevelop the North Slip parking lot:  Using a PowerPoint presentation, 
Mlada reviewed the steps taken including: 

 Creation of TIF - 2010 
Goal: create increment in downtown via strategic private, public investment 

 Parking Study - 2013 (findings published in early 2014) 
Goal: assess overall parking capacity in downtown to determine adequacy and proper 
balance of parking as part of effort to create dynamic, livable places and identify 
underutilized spaces for possible redevelopment 

 CDA Master Redevelopment Plan (partner w/CDS) - 2014 

 Goal: facilitate a public dialogue surrounding identified strategic redevelopment priorities 
and create conceptual vision and executable plan involving optimal land use 
recommendations 

 RFP Process related to North Slip Parking Lot – 2015 
Goal: invite intellectual capital (ideas) and inspire financial investment in one city-owned 
property, through process driven by CDA and community, to serve as catalyst for 
downtown redevelopment and value-add outcome for entire city 

 
Other points covered were “who was involved, why the City is doing this, what we learned, what 
is being discussed tonight, and what happens next.”  Some members in the crowd made 
inappropriate comments during the presentation and Ehrlich twice asked the crowd to be more 
considerate. They would be given time to comment later. 
 
Public appearances and comments: Ehrlich noted that public comments will now be heard and 
later a second round of comments will be allowed.  He asked that those speaking to identify 
themselves. 
 
Chris Schmidt – she questions the logic of the parking study conclusion and can’t understand 
why the City wants to sell the lot 
Tom Urban – he feels the harbor view should be protected; it is a public asset 
Pat Wilborn –  questions why there has been no response to the 500 signatures on the petition; 
he questions whether development is highest and best use and resents comments about 
asphalt 



Don Voigt – asks those in attendance whether they were in favor of a brewpub; he questions 
“who is the customer” 
Bob Wilke – he believes the City needs more proposals or offers before deciding 
Dave Woodard – is concerned that TBF will not succeed, then what?  He is disappointed no 
reaction or response to the petition; also there was no reaction or response to the park plan 
submitted by citizens; - and he says TBF is aware of the many objections 
Doug Biggs – there was no formal submission of a park plan; he is concerned with surrounding 
blighting buildings 
Rae Mitchell – she distributed flyers at the Farmer’s Market; very few in favor; says the 
commercial fishermen are concerned; City better listen to them 
Pete Ogilvie – sides are polarized, let’s work together 
Claude Zimmerman – interest now in TBF, what happens afterward when no longer popular? 
Bob Miller – supportive of City efforts to date but against selling the lot; it is the epicenter; an 
Jim Vollmer – as an owner of the Port Center have paid taxes for years; they have been trying 
important 1% of the lakefront  
for years to attract a banquet center…it is not sustainable; needs parking; he shared experience 
trying to attract Form and Fitness; and he questions the timing of the RFP 
Dave Kasson – agrees with all the comments made; says it is difficult to put in sailboats; we 
need green space 
Amy Wilborn – what happens after?  What about Victor’s and the City lot next door?  We need 
to protect what we have 
Claude Zimmerman -- says City should wait until after the Ansay development occurs 
Doug Biggs – speaking as an alderman, there is no Ansay development at this time; he has 
heard no objections from his constituents 
Jim Vollmer – asks Biggs who he is talking to; many people object 
Bob Wilke – says the parking lot is filled on weekends 
Charlie Puckett – he points out that Lakeside Development proposed a multi-story project years 
ago on the Victor’s site and the adjacent parking lot; concerned about the selling price 
Bob Miller – says that Grafton has already claimed the Blues 
Mary Lou Wagner – agrees with all the comments made so far; Port is NOT Cedarburg or 
Grafton.we have the lake! 
Lynn Brown – where will the people park for TBF? 
Pat Wilborn – where will people park? 
Mary Ann Voigt – we need a public gathering place; the lot could serve that purpose 
Kay Kasson – plans and intentions are good; but, few people seem to know 
Gerry Downing – would a referendum help?  Parking is tight on Fridays; he questions the 
validity of the parking study 
Devon Polzer –Tom Mlada reads an email from Mr. Polzer who is in favor of the City’s plans 
Tom Mlada – we have heard the City should listen to the majority, is that majority in the room 
tonight?  What about all the many folks who have participated in the redevelopment plan 
process and agree with this? 
 
North Breakwater and Lighthouse Update:  Mlada gave a quick update on status of the 
breakwater project and funding.  In addition, he mentioned that an Exploratory Committee has 
been established and met for the first time.  Their mission is to lead, advocate, and plan efforts 
to the possible submission of an application for conveyance of the Lighthouse asset. 
 
The Blues Factory proposal: Chris Long on behalf of his team presented TBF proposal.  He 
reviewed the history of the project and why it belongs in Port.  It would not be just blues but 
“roots” music.  He agreed that a brewpub would not be an optimum use of the property.  He said 
the project would consist of a cultural center, an entertainment center/theater, a banquet facility, 
and a restaurant; there would be three revenue centers.  He went down the list on how the 
proposal addressed the items described in the RFP.  The building design was meant to take the 
image of an industrial building whose scale did not overwhelm and the site provided ample 
public accessibility along the water.   
 



Members asked many questions including concerns for the west side that has no windows; 
location of the mechanicals, possible connection to NOAA, proposed timetable, project cost, 
and possible financing.  Some members were concerned that the CDA and City were fast-
tracking this and perhaps more time was needed to hear more concerns.  Other members 
expressed the opinion that the proposal met the expectation of the City and other committees 
and there has been sufficient input and opportunities for discussion as outlined by Mlada’s 
presentation.  A motion was made by Palubiski to recommend approval of the proposal 
for TBF.  The motion carried 6-1 with Roller voting no.  The proposal will now go to the Plan 
Commission who will review the conceptual building and site plan on August 20th; and onto the 
Common Council on September 1st.  Due to the size of the audience and lateness of the 
evening, Becker motioned that item #10 be moved up on the agenda to be discussed next 
and that items #7-9 be tabled.  All voting aye, the motion carried. 
  
Public appearances and comments:  
 
John Sigwart – TBF is different from a brewpub; the development agreement is the key where 
the details will be identified 
Mary Ann Voigt – after having owned a restaurant, she questions how a restaurant can get by 
without a basement 
Bob Miller – says that if he will not park by Pier 6 to shop at Duluth Trading; parking IS a major 
problem; says he loves seeing all the new investment in the downtown  
Claude Zimmerman – concerned that the plans do not have measurements and does not like 
the blank west wall 
Don Voigt – says the parking study did not address a project like this 
Rae Mitchell – asks what can be done to have more say in this matter; how can the people stop 
this? 
Karen Vollmer – has attended many meetings but has heard few speak in favor of selling this 
lot; heard many negatives 
Claude Zimmerman – he has another petition with 100 signatures; what should he do with it; 
what happened with the previous one? 
Jim Vollmer – how much money is TBF getting? How much are they putting in or taking out? 
Amy Wilborn – we need a response for the people who signed the petition; great idea but the 
wrong place 
Linda Schultz – wonderful project but the wrong location; what about the empty buildings? 
Kim Miller – the location is bad; land is too valuable for this development 
Kay Kasson – does not believe there has been an open conversation 
Pat Wilborn – you are trading my view of asphalt for the developer’s view… 
 
Adjournment: Motion by Becker to adjourn. All voting aye, the meeting adjourned at 8:50 
pm. 


